ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR 

ERROR #1 

The circuit court sentenced the Petitioner so severely and disproportionately for 

the crimes which he was convicted of that it constitutes cruel and unusual 

punishment. 

ERROR #2 

The circuit court erred by using the Petitioner's pending out-of-state charges as 

a major sentencing factor in deciding to sentence the Petitioner to the maximum 

term of incarceration of eighteen (18) months for two misdemeanors. 

KIND OF PROCEEDING AND THE NATURE OF 


THE RULING IN THE CIRCUIT COURT 


This is a direct appeal from the Circuit Court of Braxton County, Judge 

Richard Facemire presiding. The Petitioner plead guilty to "Prohibited Person 

in Possession of a Firearm," under W. Va. Code Ann. § 61-7-7(a)(3) (West), for 

which he was sentenced to one (1) year in the Central Regional Jail. The 

Petitioner further pled to "Possession of Controlled Substance, to wit: 

Methamphetamine," under W. Va. Code Ann. § 60A-4-401 (West), for which he 

was sentenced to six (6) months in the Central Regional Jail, said sentences to 

run consecutive. 

The Petitioner seeks relief in the form of a reversal of the Sentencing 

Order of the Circuit Court of Braxton County. 

1 



STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

According to the police report, the investigation in this case of the 

Petitioner, Samuel Tanner, began at approximately four o'clock in the 

afternoon on May 20,2016, when a confidential informant spoke with Trooper 

First Class L.D. Mohr of the West Virginia State Police. Report o/Criminal 

Investigation, Appendix Record [hereinafter "R."] at 8. Said confidential 

informant apparently told the TFC Mohr that he (the informant) had just had a 

phone conversation with Mr. Tanner, wherein Mr. Tanner had agreed to sell the 

confidential informant a bag of methamphetamine that day, in Mr. Tanner's 

home, for $50. Id. 

A few minutes later, TFC Mohr made an application before Braxton 

County Magistrate Beth Smith for an electronic intercept warrant inside the 

home of Mr. Tanner. Id.; see also Application/or Electronic Interception (R. at 

11). The purpose of the application for electronic interception was to allow the 

confidential informant to wear a digital recording device inside Mr. Tanner's 

home during a controlled buy. Id. The application stated that "On May 20, 

2016, TFC L.D. Mohr spoke to a confidential informant who advised that he 

could purchase meth from Adam Tanner at his residence located along WV 

Route 4. Adam Tanner advised the CI, [sic] that he would sell him one bag of 

meth for $50." Id. The application did not give any details as to why the 

confidential informant was a reliable source of information, nor did the 

application present any other factors to be considered which would serve to 

make the confidential informant's tip more likely or reliable. Id. 
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Said order was granted by Magistrate Smith. See Order for Electronic 

Interception (R. at 10). At around five o'clock that evening, TFC Mohr, with the 

help of the informant, executed what is purported to be a controlled buy from 

Mr. Tanner inside Mr. Tanner's home. Report of Criminal Investigation (R. at 8). 

TFC Mohr drove the confidential informant to a church within walking distance 

of Mr. Tanner's home. Id. From there, TFC Mohr states that he searched the 

confidential informant for contraband, found none, and then sent him off on foot 

to Mr. Tanner's house, where the confidential informant recorded his meeting 

with the Petitioner inside the home on a digital audio recorder. Id. 

Based on the evidence obtained during this controlled buy, TFC Mohr 

immediately applied for a search warrant of Mr. Tanner's home, and the search 

warrant was granted. See Search Warrant (R. at 12-13); see also Affidavit and 

Complaint for Search Warrant (R. at 14-15). Just before eight o'clock that night, 

TFC Mohr, with members of the State Police and Braxton County Sheriffs 

Department swarmed Mr. Tanner's home and executed the search warrant. 

Report of Criminal Investigation (R. at 8-9). Mr. Tanner was in his home with a 

female companion at the time. Id. While conducting the search, law 

enforcement collected evidence allegedly related to the controlled buy, such as 

scales with powder residue. Id.; see also Property Receiptfrom Execution of 

Search Warrant (R. at 16). According to the report, they also located a .22 

caliber rifle and a 16-guage shotgun in one of the back bedrooms. Id. 

Pursuant to the search, Mr. Tanner was arrested and interrogated by 

TFC Mohr. Id. During this interrogation, after signing a Miranda Waiver, Mr. 
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Tanner made certain inculpatory statements. Id.; see also Miranda Waiver (R. 

at 17). 

Following the appointment of counsel, the matter was bound over to 

circuit court, and the Defendant was eventually indicted on felony "Delivery of 

a Controlled Substance, to wit: Methamphetamine," pursuant to West Virginia 

Code §60A-4-401 (a)(ii), and misdemeanor "Prohibited Person in Possession of a 

Firearm, to wit: one (1) shotgun and one (1) rifle," pursuant to West Virginia 

Code §61-7-7(a)(3).l Braxton County Case 17-F-15 comprised these two 

alleged crimes. See Indictment (R. at 18-21). 

During the course of the case, defense counsel entered into negotiations 

with the State. There was controversy concerning the legality of the wiretap 

interception which led to the search of Mr. Tanner's home and his subsequent 

interrogation. See Sentencing Hearing Transcript [hereinafter S. Hr. Tr.] (R. at 

122).2 On the verge of taking the wiretap issue to suppression hearing, the 

State and Mr. Tanner, with the help of counsel, reached a plea agreement 

wherein Mr. Tanner would plead guilty to two misdemeanors: "Prohibited 

Person in Possession of a Firearm, to wit: one (1) shotgun and one (1) rifle," 

pursuant to West Virginia Code §61-7-7(a}(3) and "Possession of a Controlled 

Substance, to wit: Methamphetamine," pursuant to 60A-4-401(c).3 

1 §61-7-7(a)(3) specifies why the person is prohibited from possessing a fIrearm as, "Except as 
provided in this section, no person shall possess a fIrearm, as such is defined in section two of 
this article, who: (3) Is an unlawful user of or habitually addicted to any controlled substance[.]" 
2 Based on the rights waived by entry of plea, the Petitioner is not challenging the validity of the 
Electronic Surveillance Order in this appeal. 
3 The State's original plea offer was for the Petitioner to plead to Count I of the Indictment for 
felony "Delivery of Methamphetamine.» The State's offer for the Petitioner to plead to two 
misdemeanors likely would have been rescinded if the electronic surveillance suppression issue 
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A plea hearing was held on March 28, 2017, whereupon, the Court 

accepted the plea deal reached between the parties and the Defendant entered 

his plea to the two misdemeanors. Order- Plea Hearing (24-28). Mr. Tanner 

was ordered to undergo a presentence investigation and a sentencing hearing 

was set. Plea Hr. Tr. [hereinafter Pl. Hr. Tr.] (R. at 110). 

On May 18, 2017, a sentencing hearing was held. Order- Sentencing 

Hearing (R. at 38-41). Counsel for Mr. Tanner noted that the Petitioner was 

suffering from a serious drug problem and argued that a diagnostic would be 

an appropriate temporary disposition, so that the court could better grasp the 

nature of Mr. Tanner's substance issues. S. Hr. Tr. (R. at 119-120). Then Mr. 

Tanner could be returned for sentencing, and the court would have a more 

distinct view of what kind of treatment or rehabilitative services he was in need 

of. [d. 

For his own part, Mr. Tanner noted to the court that he is employed by 

Precision Pipeline, and that he is a family man who spends his time with his 

two daughters when he is not working. [d. at 120. Mr. Tanner expressed 

genuine remorse for his actions and stated that he is making his best efforts to 

get his life back on track. [d. 

Pursuant to the Plea Agreement, the State stood silent at sentencing. 

Plea Agreement (R. at 22-23). 

had gone to hearing, and the circuit court ruled in favor of the State. Unsure what the circuit 
court's interpretation of the issue would be (the state may have made a serviceable argument for 
a "good faith exception"), the Petitioner opted to hedge his bets and plead to the misdemeanors. 
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The court was unmoved by counsel's motion for diagnostic evaluation 

and Mr. Tanner's statement of remorse, as well as the steps he was taking to 

improve his life, such as gaining full-time employment. The court stated that: 

Mr. Tanner, I believe that you have a serious drug problem. And I'm not 
convinced that you're dealing with your drug problem. It troubles me 
that you're charged in the State of North Carolina with the possession of 
heroin, possession of drug paraphernalia, trafficking in meth, 
manufacturing and delivering of controlled substances down there that 
are pending in the case. I believe that there's a substantial risk that you 
would commit a crime or violate probation if I gave you alternative 
sentencing. I believe that you're in need of correctional treatment that 
could be more effectively served in a correctional institution. Quite 
frankly, to give you probation or conditional discharge would unduly 
depreciate the seriousness of the offenses for which you've committed in 
the matter. You got what I call a "sweetheart deal" here. Now, I 
understand that there's extenuating circumstances that maybe there 
were some issues involving whether the State could get its evidence 
admitted in the case. That was the State's representation to the Court. I 
don't know whether that was the case or not because I didn't hear the 
matter on any kind of suppression hearing. But in any event, based 
upon what I believe is your prior criminal record, based upon what I 
believe is a serious drug addiction problem, based upon your past 
history, quite frankly, and the deliberate nature of the offenses, it's the 
Judgment and Order of the Court that your motion for home 
confinement and probation shall be and is hereby denied in the matter. 

S. Hr. Tr. (R. at 121-122). 

For the misdemeanor offense of "Prohibited Person in Possession of a 

Firearm," under W. Va. Code Ann. § 61-7-7(a)(3), Mr. Tanner was sentenced to 

one (1) year in the Central Regional Jail, and for the misdemeanor offense of 

"Possession of Controlled Substance, to wit: Methamphetamine," under W. Va. 

Code Ann. § 60A-4-401, he was sentenced to six (6) months in the Central 

Regional Jail, said sentences to run consecutive. See Order- Sentencing Hr. (R. 

at 39). 
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The Court further stated that if Mr. Tanner could secure housing in a 

long-term in-patient drug treatment facility, then the court may be inclined to 

reconsider Mr. Tanner's sentence, pursuant a to a Rule 35, Motion to 

Reconsider Sentence. S. Hr. Tr. (R. at 123-124). 

The signed sentencing order was issued by the Court on June 2,2017. 

See Order- Sentencing Hr. (R. at 41). 

According to Mr. Tanner, he had family members contacting in-patient 

treatment facilities, but they were having difficulty finding an open bed for him. 

Upon the direction of Mr. Tanner, counsel filed a Rule 35 Motion with the 

circuit court on June 20, 2017. Motion to Reconsider Sentence (R. at 45-47). 

With the notice of appeal deadline drawing near and no response on counsel's 

Motion to Reconsider, counsel followed Mr. Tanner's instruction and filed a 

notice of appeal with this Honorable Court on June 28, 2017. 

This Honorable Court accepted jurisdiction over the matter via 

Scheduling Order entered June 29,2017. The circuit court issued an order 

denying the Petitioner's Motion to Reconsider on June 30, 2017. Order Denying 

Motion to Reconsider Sentence (R. at 48).4 

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

Because the principle issue in this case has not been authoritatively 

decided in the Court's jurisprudence, oral argument under the Revised Rules of 

4 Counsel believes this Court assumed exclusive jurisdiction upon entry of the Scheduling Order 
of June 29, 2017, rendering the order of the circuit court from June 30, 2017 moot. 
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Appellate Procedure Rule 19 may be necessary, unless the Court determines the 

facts and legal arguments are adequately presented in the briefs and record on 

appeal, and there are no unsettled questions of law which would be aided by oral 

argument, in which case, a memorandum decision may be appropriate. 

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

The circuit court abused its discretion when it sentenced the Petitioner to 

two consecutive maximum sentences for his conviction of two misdemeanors. 

By sentencing the Petitioner to the maximum eighteen months on two simple 

misdemeanor charges, the circuit court effectively ordered the Petitioner to be 

incarcerated for the length of a felony conviction. This sentence is so 

disproportionate to the character and degree of the Petitioner's conduct that it 

is unconstitutional 

Further, the circuit court abused its discretion by using an 

impermissible sentencing factor to decide what punishment the Petitioner 

should receive. The circuit court was alerted to the Petitioner's pending North 

Carolina charges by the Pre-Sentence Investigation Report. The court cited the 

charges as evidence that the Petitioner was still failing to conform his behavior 

to the law during the pendency of this case, despite the North Carolina charges 

having been filed approximately a year before the events in this case. Even 

though the Court only had a rudimentary understanding of these charges, the 

court erroneously gave them great weight at sentencing. 
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These two errors make the imposition of the Petitioner's sentence 

unconstitutional. 

STANDARD OF REVIEW 

In Syllabus Point 1 of State v. Lucas, this Honorable Court held that: 

The Supreme Court of Appeals reviews sentencing orders, including orders 
ofrestitution made in connection with a defendant's sentencing under a 
deferential abuse of discretion standard, unless the order violates 
statutory or constitutional commands. 

201 W.Va. 271, 496 S.E.2d 221 (1997). 

ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR 


ERROR :##1 


The circuit court sentenced the Petitioner so severely and 


disproportionately for the crimes which he was convicted of that it 


constitutes cruel and unusual punishment. 

I. Rule 

Article 3, Section 5 of the West Virginia Constitution states that: 

Excessive bail shall not be required, nor excessive fines imposed, nor cruel 
and unusual punishment inflicted. Penalties shall be proportioned to the 
character and degree of the offence. 

W. Va. Const. art. III, § 5. 
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In determining whether a punishment is constitutionally impermissible 

under Article III, § 5 of the West Virginia Constitution, this Honorable Court 

has held that "consideration is given to the nature of the offense, the legislative 

purpose behind the punishment, a comparison of the punishment with what 

would be inflicted in other jurisdictions, and a comparison with other offenses 

within the same jurisdiction." Syl. Pt. 5, Wanstreet v. Bordenkircher, 166 W.Va. 

523, 276 S.E.2d 205 (1981); Syl. Pt. 4, State v. Tyler, 211 W. Va. 246,565 

S.E.2d 368 (2002). 

This Court has also noted the jurisprudence of the Federal Circuits and 

the u.s. Supreme Court as they interpret the 8 th Amendment of the Federal 

Constitution on the issue: 

A criminal sentence may be so long as to violate the proportionality 
principle implicit in the cruel and unusual punishment clause of the 
Eighth Amendment to the United States Constitution. 

State v. Vance, 164 W. Va. 216, 217, 262 S.E.2d 423,425 (1980). 

II. Application 

In this case, Mr. Tanner is serving what amounts to a felony sentence for 

two simple misdemeanors. In particular, it truly shocks the conscience that 

Mr. Tanner received the maximum sentence of one (1) year in the Central 

Regional Jail for "Prohibited Person in Possession of a Firearm," under W. Va. 

Code Ann. § 61-7-7(a)(3). 

As noted above, the language of this subsection of the statute "Except as 

provided in this section, no person shall possess a firearm, as such is defined 
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in section two of this article, who: (3) Is an unlawful user of or habitually 

addicted to any controlled substance[.]" W. Va. Code Ann. § 61-7-7(a)(3). 

Anyone convicted of this misdemeanor offense is subject to a potential year in 

jail. Id. 

The Petitioner concedes that there is a purpose for such a statute to 

exist. Those who suffer from substance dependency are less stable than those 

who do not and are more likely to harm themselves or someone else with a 

firearm, particularly if they are under the influence. However, the application 

of this law is far reaching and ripe for abuses. 

West Virginians own more firearms per capita than the residents of 

nearly any other state.5 Far from being the province solely of stereotypical 

hoodlums and criminals, gun ownership is a part of normal life and recreation 

for most West Virginia's of the population, especially when it comes to typical 

shotguns and rifles, which are used for hunting and target practice. 

The code section which Mr. Tanner was convicted and sentenced under 

encompasses a wide array of the population. Anyone who is a habitual user or 

addict of any controlled substance is outlawed from possessing a firearm. This 

includes anyone who is legally prescribed to pain medication, such as Lortab or 

Percocet, or anxiety medication, such as Valium or Xanax. 

There was no evidence that either of the firearms that were recovered 

from the Petitioner's home had any connection to any illegal activity other than 

5 See Demographicdata.com; "Gun Ownership Statistics by State"; 
http://demographicdata.orgl facts-and-figures Igun-ownership-statistics/; last accessed 
September 28, 2017. 
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the Petitioner keeping them in his back bedroom while being a user of a 

controlled substance. One firearm was a simple .22 rifle and the other was a 

very old double barrel 16-guage shotgun, which Mr. Tanner believes was so 

damaged that it was not even operational. 

There is nothing malum in se about Mr. Tanner's possession of two 

firearms. It was purely malum prohibitum for Mr. Tanner to have a .22 rifle and 

an old (probably broken) shotgun tucked away in the back of his home while he 

happened to have a drug dependency problem. 

One can imagine circumstances where possession of a firearm by 

someone habitually addicted to controlled substances would merit a harsh 

sentence. Imagine an individual with a history of serious violence, whose 

violence was exacerbated by their drug and alcohol problem, and said 

individual had a history of brandishing and threatening others around them 

with a firearm when under the influence. If that person were arrested under 

the influence of a controlled substance and in possession of firearm, they 

would be a prime example of someone who deserves a similar penalty to the 

one Mr. Tanner in this case. 

However, no such circumstances are present in Mr. Tanner's case. Mr. 

Tanner's only violent criminal conviction is for a simple assault. See Pre

Sentence Investigation Report [hereinafter PSlj, (R. at 31-32). He has no prior 

felony convictions. Id. Nothing was presented to the circuit court that in 

anyway links the guns found in Mr. Tanner's home to illegal drug activity other 

than proximity. 
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III. Conclusion 

As such, the year of incarceration that Mr. Tanner received for his 

violation ofW. Va. Code Ann. § 61-7-7(a)(3), is wholly disproportionate to the 

crime for which he was convicted and constitutes cruel and unusual 

punishment in violation of W. Va. Const. art. III, § 5. See State v. Vance, supra. 

At the very least, said sentence should have been ordered to run concurrent to 

the six-month sentence he received for "Possession of Controlled Substance, to 

wit: Methamphetamine," under W. Va. Code Ann. § 60A-4-401. 

ERROR #2 

The circuit court erred by using the Petitioner's pending out-of-state 

charges as a major sentencing factor in deciding to sentence the Petitioner 

to the maximum term of incarceration of eighteen (18) months for two 

misdemeanors. 

I. Rule 

"The plain language of W. Va.Code § 61-11-17 [current with 2017] places 

the imposition of punishment for misdemeanor offenses within the discretion of 

the sentencing court where there exists no law otherwise providing for such 

punishment." Syl. Pt. 2, State v. Allen, 539 S.E.2d 87, 90, 208 W.Va. 144, 147 

(W.Va. 1999). 

"When a defendant has been convicted of two separate crimes, before 

sentence is pronounced for either, the trial court may, in its discretion, provide 
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that the sentences run concurrently, and unless it does so provide, the 

sentences will run consecutively." Syl. Pt. 3, Keith v. Leverette, 254 S.E.2d 700, 

163 W.Va. 98 (W.Va. 1979). 

"Sentences imposed by the trial court, if within statutory limits and if not 

based on some [im]permissible factor, are not subject to appellate review." Syl. 

Pt. 4, State v. Goodnight, 287 S.E.2d 504, 169 W.Va. 366 (W.Va. 1982); Syl. Pt. 

12, State v. Broughton, 470 S.E.2d 413, 196 W.Va. 281 (W.Va. 1996). 

A sentencing judge generally has broad powers to review information 

about a defendant's history and criminal activity when deciding what sentence 

to impose, but this authority is not limitless. See U. S. v. Tucker, 92 S.Ct. 589, 

591,404 U.S. 443,446 (U.S. Cal. 1972). The United States Supreme Court 

has clearly stated that it is impermissible to sentence an individual, "on the 

basis of assumptions concerning his criminal record which were materially 

untrue. Such a result, whether caused by carelessness or design, is 

inconsistent with due process of law, and such a conviction cannot stand." 

Townsend v. Burke, 68 S.Ct. 1252, 1255,334 U.S. 736,741 (U.S. 1948). In