IN THE SUPREME COURT OF APPEALS OF WEST VIRGINIA 


NO. 17-0579 


STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA, 


PlaintiffBelow, Respondent, 

v. 

SAMUEL TANNER, 

Defendant Below, Petitioner. 

SUMMARY RESPONSE 

I.

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

ARGUMENT 


A. Standard of Review 

This Court has previously held: 

In reviewing the findings of fact and conclusions of law of a circuit 
court concerning an order on a motion made under Rule 35 of the 
West Virginia Rules of Criminal Procedure, we apply a three
pronged standard of review. We review the decision on the Rule)5 
motion under an abuse of discretion standard; the underlying facts 
are reviewed under a clearly erroneous standard; and questions of 
law and interpretations of statutes and rules are subject to a de 
novo review. 

Syl. Pt. 1, State v. Collins, 238 W. Va. 123, 792 S.E.2d 622 (2016) (citing Syl. Pt. 1, State v. 

Head, 198 w. Va. 298, 480 S.E.2d 507 (1996)). "Sentences imposed by the trial court, if within 

statutory limits and if not based on some [im]permissible factor, are not subject to appellate 

review." Syl. Pt. 2, Id. (citing Syl. Pt. 4, State v. Goodnight, 169 W. Va. 366, 287 S.E.2d 504 

(1982); Syl. Pt. 10, State v. Payne, 225 W. Va. 602, 694 S.E.2d 935 (2010)). 
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B. 	 The Circuit Court Did Not Base Petitioner's Sentence Upon an Impermissible 
Factor of Pending Out-of-State Charges. 

1. 	 This Court Previously Found That Pending Out-of-State Charges Are Not an 
Impermissible Factor for a Court to Consider at Sentencing. 

In State v. James, No. 11-1009, 2012 WL 4054127 at * 3 (W. Va. Sept. 7, 2012) 

(memorandum decision), this Court recognized that no legal authority exists in West Virginia 

which renders a lower court's consideration of pending out-of-state charges impermissible for 

purposes of that court making a sentencing determination.s The petitioner in James made a 

similar argument on appeal following his sentencing of one (1) to five (5) years' imprisonment 

for child neglect resulting in injury. See James, 2012 WL 4054127 at * 1-3. Specifically, the 

petitioner asserted that the circuit court's recognition of pending Indiana charges arising from 

similar conduct as his crime in West Virginia was impermissible, thereby entitling him to review 

of the lower court's sentencing order pursuant to Syl. Pt. 4, Goodnight. !d. This Court agreed 

with the State, however, finding that the lower court's reference to the petitioner's out-of-state 

charges was not tantamount to sentencing based upon those charges, and further finding that 

West Virginia law did not prohibit a circuit court from considering such a factor during 

sentencing. See id. at 3. 

This Court's direct reasoning in James indicates that a lower court can consider a 

criminal defendant's pending charges in other jurisdictions as a basis for his sentencing. 

Petitioner's second assignment of error is therefore facially meritless, and this Court should deny 

any further review of his sentencing below pursuant to Syl. Pt. 4, Goodnight. Even if this court 

5 Counsel for Petitioner was also counsel of record for the petitioner in James, wherein he made the same 
assignments of error following that petitioner's sentencing of one (1) to five (5) years' imprisonment for 
child neglect resulting in injury. See James, 2012 WL 4054127. Specifically, the petitioner there argued 
that the circuit court's recognition of pending Indiana charges during sentencing was impermissible and 
asserted that the court's sentencing of him to the statutorily-prescribed sentencing was unconstitutionally 
disproportionate.ld. Petitioner, however, does not identify James as relevant legal authority in his brief. 
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was to detennine that a lower court's consideration of pending charges in other jurisdictions was 

impennissible, however, the circuit court below did not specifically base its decision to sentence 

Petitioner to an aggregate tenn of eighteen (18) months based upon his pending North Carolina 

charges. 

2. 	 The Circuit Court Did Not Consider Petitioner's Pending North Carolina 
Charges Per Se, But Rather Viewed Those Charges as Evidence of 
Petitioner's Severe Substance Abuse Problem and Risk to Reoffend. 

Even if this Court desires to revisit its reasoning in James, it should find that the circuit 

court below did not rely on Petitioner's pending North Carolina charges as a standalone basis for 

his incarceration, insomuch as it found those charges evidenced Petitioner's substance abuse 

problem and his risk to reoffend should such a problem go untreated. In both the sentencing 

hearing transcript (see AR at 121-22) and the circuit court's sentencing order (see AR at 38-39), 

the court detennined that Petitioner's alleged acts in North Carolina indicated that he suffered 

from a severe substance abuse problem and was in need of treatment in a correctional setting. 

Further supporting this finding is the circuit court's acknowledgment that it would reconsider 

Petitioner's sentence of incarceration if he were to secure placement in a "long-tenn in-patient 

substance abuse treatment program." (AR at 40.) Thus, Petitioner's sentencing was not based on 

any perceived impermissible factor related to his pending North Carolina charges, but rather the 

circuit court's finding that Petitioner was in need of substance abuse treatment. 

C. 	 Petitioner's Sentence of Eighteen (18) Months Is Not Constitutionally 
Disproportionate to His Acts of Misdemeanor Possession of Methamphetamine and 
Misdemeanor Possession of Firearms. 

Because Petitioner's sentence adheres to the statutorily-prescribed term and was not 

based upon any impermissible factor, this Court should decline to review the circuit court's 

sentencing order. See Syl. Pt. 4, Goodnight. Even if this Court reviews Petitioner's sentence, 
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however, a sentence of eighteen (18) months' incarceration as it relates to Petitioner's 

convictions for possession of methamphetamine and being a prohibited person in possession of a 

firearm is not unconstitutionally disproportionate. 

In Syl. Pt. 8, State v. Vance, 164 W. Va. 216, 262 S.E.2d 423 (1980), this Court 

recognized that "Article III, Section 5 of the West Virginia Constitution, which contains the cruel 

and unusual punishment counterpart to the Eighth Amendment ofthe United States Constitution, 

has an express statement of the proportionality principle: 'Penalties shall be proportioned to the 

character and degree of the offence. '" While any criminal sentence is subject to proportionality 

standards, those standards are "basically applicable to those sentences where there is either no 

fixed maximum set by statute or where there is a life recidivist sentence." Syl. Pt. 4, Wanstreet v. 

Bordenkircher, 166 W. Va. 523, 276 S.E.2d 205 (1981). "In determining whether a given 

sentence violates the proportionality principle found in Article III, Section 5 of the West Virginia 

Constitution, consideration is given to the nature of the offense, the legislative purpose behind 

the punishment, a comparison of the punishment with what would be inflicted in other 

jurisdictions, and a comparison with other offenses within the same jurisdiction." Syl. Pt. 5, Id. 

Despite relying on Vance and Wanstreet to support his argument, Petitioner addresses 

none of the factors enumerated in Wanstreet, and fails to show that his sentence is 

unconstitutionally disproportionate. Instead, he advances a policy argument which passively, yet 

facially, attacks the constitutionality of W. Va. Code § 61-7-7(a)(3). See Pet'r's Br. at 10-12. 

This constitutionality argument is neither properly raised as an assignment of error nor 

adequately briefed as required by Rule IO(c) of the West Virginia Revised Rules of Appellate 

Procedure. 
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In contrast, the record below shows exactly why Petitioner's sentencing is both 

proportionate and necessary. Petitioner was convicted for possessing meth and guns, and was 

arrested for dealing meth in a state ravaged by illicit drug use and opioid addiction.6 Petitioner 

eventually pled down to a lesser-included offense of possession, and the circuit court sentenced 

him to an aggregate term of incarceration of eighteen (18) months based purely upon his need for 

treatment in a correctional setting. Petitioner's sentence adhered to the statutorily-prescribed 

terms of W. Va. Code §§ 60A-4-401(c) and 61-7-7(a)(3). The legislative purpose behind those 

sentences is an obvious effort to combat West Virginia's drug addiction problem. And Petitioner 

fails to advance any argument how such sentencing does not compare with similar convictions in 

either West Virginia or its neighboring states. Thus, because Petitioner's sentence adheres to the 

requirements of SyL Pt. 4, Goodnight, and because Petitioner fails to demonstrate relief under 

any of the factors enumerated by this Court in Wanstreet, this Court should affirm the circuit 

court's sentencing of Petitioner on appeaL7 

6 See Drug Enforcement Administration, DEA Washington Division Office, DEA Intelligence Report: The 
West Virginia Drug Situation, https://www.dea.gov/docsIDEA-WAS-DIR-024
17%20West%20Virginia%20Drug%20Situation%20-UNCLASSIFIED.pdf at * 6 (May 2017) 
(identifying that "[t]he abuse and trafficking of [controlled prescription drugs], heroin, fentanyl, and 
crystal methamphetamine represent a significant threat to West Virginia"). See also National Drug 
Intelligence Center, West Virginia Drug Threat . Assessment, 
https://www.justice.gov/archive/ndic/pubs5/5266/meth.htm (last visited Nov. 14, 2017) (finding that 
"[m]ethamphetamine increasingly is associated with violent crime in West Virginia" and that "abusers 
and producers often commit crimes of domestic violence, including spousal and child abuse and 
neglect"). Notably, Petitioner was arrested for aggravated assault in Pennsylvania, although the charge 
was eventually pled down to a conviction for simple assault. (See AR at 32.) 

7 Petitioner also failed to challenge the circuit court's sentencing below on either proportionality grounds 
or the circuit court's mention of Petitioner's pending North Carolina charges. Rather, in his Rule 35(b) 
motion, Petitioner--inferring that his sentences were appropriate--merely requested that the circuit court 
run them concurrently. (See AR at 45-46.) 
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IV. 


CONCLUSION 


WHEREFORE, the State respectfully requests that this Court affirm Petitioner's 

sentencing by the Circuit Court of Braxton County, West Virginia.